By-Laws For Metropolitan Community Church of Knoxville, Inc. Reflecting Changes Made May 21, 2023

Article I – Name

The name of this church shall be Metropolitan Community Church of Knoxville, Inc., also known as MCC Knoxville.

Article II – Affiliation

This church is a member congregation of the Universal Fellowship of Metropolitan Community Churches (UFMCC); ascribes to the government, doctrine, vision, mission, and values of UFMCC; and agrees to abide by the UFMCC Bylaws and decisions made by General Conference.

A. Successor Corporation – The Universal Fellowship of Metropolitan Community Churches is the not-for-profit organization designated to receive the church's property in the event of dissolution or abandonment of the church, in accordance with UFMCC Bylaws.

B. Disaffiliation – A decision to disaffiliate from the UFMCC shall require a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Members present at a Congregational Meeting called for the purpose of disaffiliating and shall be decided in accordance with UFMCC Bylaws. After existing financial obligations to the UFMCC are met, the disaffiliating local church has the right to net assets.

Article III – Purpose

The purpose of this church is Christian fellowship, worship, witness, and service, borne in the cooperation, program development, and implementation of UFMCC and local church Bylaws, Standard Operating Procedures, and Policies.

A. We gather to worship and serve a God of grace – sharing the Good News of Jesus Christ and learning to follow Christ's example of love and justice.

B. It is the intention of this congregation that inclusiveness will be practiced at all times in all matters. We understand that the term "inclusiveness" encompasses but is not restricted to: the use of inclusive language, both spoken and in music, including the use of biblical translations that are intentionally inclusive, including not assigning gender to God and endeavoring at all times to maintain an inclusive balance in the election and appointment of persons to committees, boards, and other bodies of the church at all levels, and also in community outreach efforts.

Article IV – Members and Friends

A. Criteria for Membership – Any baptized Christian who has completed a membership class may become a Member by participating in the Rite of Membership. A Member in good standing is a Member who registers their attendance, provides identifiable financial support, makes a definite service contribution, and demonstrates interest.

1. Membership List – The list of Members in good standing shall be maintained by the church staff, who shall report changes at the Board Meeting prior to a Congregational Meeting and the Board Meeting that deals with Membership Review.

2. Membership Review – The Board shall seek to review the membership list once in a twelve month period.

a. A Member who does not have registered attendance, identified financial support, definite service contribution, and demonstrated interest within the preceding period of six (6) months to one (1) year may be removed from the list of Members in good standing and placed on a list of inactive Members.

b. The Board shall notify this Member in writing that the Member has been placed on a list of inactive Members and is not eligible to vote at any business meeting of the church.

c. If the inactive Member has not attended, provided identifiable financial support, and demonstrated further interest for a period of two (2) months immediately following notification, the Board shall have the authority, at its discretion, to drop any such Member from the local church membership roll. Upon request a person may remain on the inactive roll for an indefinite period of time.

d. The inactive Member may be restored to the list of Members in good standing by a vote of the Board without a public reception into membership.

e. The inactive Member who is not restored during the period of two (2) months immediately following notification or has not requested to remain on the inactive list shall be considered a former Member.

f. A former Member may be restored to the list of Members in good standing after completing a membership class and participating in the Rite of Membership.

3. Right to Appeal – A decision by the Board to drop an inactive Member from the local church membership roll is not subject to appeal.

B. Friends of the Church – A person who, for one reason or another, feels unable to become a Member but who supports the goals of the church and wants to be a part of the work of the church may be designated as a Friend of the Church.

1. List of Friends of the Church – The list of Friends of the Church shall be maintained by church staff.

2. Limitations on Friends of the Church – Friends may serve on appointed committees and may participate in all activities of the church. Friends may not vote at Congregational Meetings or serve on the Board. Friends shall not be considered in determining the number of Lay Delegates.

C. Discipline of Members and Friends – The church cannot condone disloyalty or unbecoming conduct on the part of any Member or Friend. The Board is empowered to remove by majority vote any Member or Friend or take other appropriate disciplinary action.

1. Right to Appeal – The action of the Board may be appealed to the next regular Congregational Meeting or a Special Congregational Meeting called for that purpose. The decision of the Congregational Meeting is final. Pending the outcome of the appeal of discipline, the disciplined Member or Friend shall remain under discipline and shall retain the right to vote at regular and Special Congregational Meetings, including the Congregational Meeting held to consider the appeal.

a. Appeal Process – The request for an appeal shall be submitted to the Clerk of the Board within thirty (30) days following the date when the inactive Member was dropped from the local church membership roll.

b. The Board may consider the appeal and reverse its earlier decision without taking the matter to the Congregational Meeting.

c. Should the Board sustain its earlier decision and the inactive Member wishes the appeal to continue, the request shall be included as an agenda item for the next regular Congregational Meeting or a Special Congregational Meeting called for the purpose of considering the appeal.

Article V – Congregational Meetings

Government of the church is vested in its Congregational Meeting, which exerts the right to control its affairs, subject to the provisions of the UFMCC Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, or documents of legal organization, and the General Conference.

A. Time and Place – Semi-annual Congregational Meetings shall be held each year in the fall and spring. The time and place of the semi-annual Congregational Meeting shall be determined by the Board.

B. Notification – The Board shall notify members in writing through postal or electronic mail and posting on the web site at least two (2) weeks in advance. It is the responsibility of members to keep their contact information updated.

C. Voting Rights – Each Member in good standing has the right to vote. Proxy or any other form of absentee voting shall not be allowed.

D. Votes Required for Approval – Decisions, including elections, requires approval by a vote of more than fifty percent (50%) of those Members present and voting, unless otherwise required by UFMCC Bylaws or otherwise state in these local church Bylaws.

E. Quorum – In order to transact business, no less than twenty percent (20%) of the Members in good standing must be present.

F. Agenda – The agenda for Congregational Meetings shall be determined by the Board.

1. Content – The agenda shall include, but not be limited to, election of members to the Board, election of Lay Delegates in the appropriate year, presentation of financial report, approval of budget, and receiving reports from the Board and the Pastor.

2. Additions to Agenda – Members may request the Board to add agenda items by submitting additional agenda items to the Clerk no later than one (1) week prior to the meeting.

G. Elections – All votes for positions shall be taken by secret ballot. Votes of affirmation from the floor are not permitted.

H. Special Congregational Meetings – In addition to the Semi-Annual Congregational Meetings, special Congregational Meetings may also be held. Special Congregational Meetings are governed by the same rules as those pertaining to the Semi-Annual Congregational Meetings.

1. Calling a Special Congregational Meeting – A special Congregational Meeting may be called either by (a) majority vote of the Board, (b) the Pastor, or (c) a petition signed by at least twenty percent (20%) of the Members and submitted to the Clerk.

2. The nature and purpose of the special Congregational Meeting shall be stated in the petition and in notices and written into the agenda.

Article VI – Local Church Administrative Body

A. Name – The local church administrative body shall be the Board of Directors (Board), which is authorized to provide administrative leadership for MCC Knoxville, subject to approval of the Congregational Meeting.

B. Responsibilities – The Board shall be responsible for providing the church with a set of Bylaws, which are subject to approval by Congregational Meeting and the Elder serving the Network and for submitting the approved Bylaws to the Elder serving the Network. The Board shall also have charge of all matters pertaining to the documents of legal organization and incorporation, church property, risk management, and physical and financial affairs of the church. The Board shall also be responsible for collecting and disbursing funds, keeping adequate church records, and making timely reports to the Congregation and UFMCC.

C. Qualifications – Members of the Board must be Members in good standing of MCC Knoxville for at least six (6) months.

Conflict of Interest – More than one person from a household, family, or committed relationship; someone who is a church employee, or someone who is a Clergy Candidate shall not be eligible to serve on the Board.

D. Composition – There shall be seven (7) members, including the Pastor.

E. Term of Office – The term of office for members of the Board, except the Pastor, shall be two-year staggered terms, with three persons elected in the spring of each year.

F. Meetings – The Board shall generally meet once a month and no fewer than ten (10) times a year. Except for executive sessions, meetings shall be open to the congregation and to the public to attend without vote.

1. Minutes – Minutes and financial reports shall be available to Members of the church within two (2) weeks after each meeting. Minutes shall include a record of those present and decisions made. A copy of the minutes shall become part of the permanent church records.

G. Quorum – No less than a majority of the members of the Board must be present in order to transact business.

H. Official Officers – The official officers of the church are Moderator (Pastor), Vice-Moderator, Clerk, and Treasurer.

1. Election of Officers – The official officers, except for Moderator (Pastor), shall be elected by the Board at the Board Meeting following the spring Congregational Meeting each year. The term of office for officers, except for Moderator (Pastor), shall be one year and an additional month to help transition new persons onto the Board.

a. Moderator – The Moderator will establish the agenda and manage the flow of the meeting of the Board and Congregational Meetings. The Moderator will be responsible for keeping the vision of the Church before the congregation. The Pastor shall serve as a member and Moderator of the Board.

b. Vice-Moderator – The Vice-Moderator shall serve as Moderator of the Board in the absence or upon the request of the Moderator.

c. Clerk – The Clerk shall be responsible for ensuring the maintenance of official correspondence and church records, and for ensuring that accurate records are kept of all meetings of the Board and of the Congregation. The Clerk is the officer authorized to receive petitions submitted to the Board.

d. Treasurer – The Treasurer shall be responsible for ensuring the preparation and maintenance of all financial records. This shall include a monthly financial report to the Board and an annual financial report to the Congregation. The monthly and annual financial reports shall reflect receipts, disbursements, and outstanding financial obligations.

I. Vacancies – In the event of a vacancy on the Board, the Board may appoint a qualified Member to fill the vacancy until the next Congregational Meeting, when an election shall be held to fill the unexpired term.

J. Discipline – The church cannot condone unbecoming conduct, or dereliction of duty on the part of any member of the Board. Therefore, the Board may remove by a majority vote of the full Board any of its members guilty of the above, with the exception of the Pastor who must be disciplined in accordance with UFMCC Bylaws. A petition submitted to the Clerk and signed by twenty percent (20%) of the Members in good standing of the congregation may also initiate such a procedure.

1. Right to Appeal – A disciplined member of the Board may appeal the action to the congregation at its next regular Congregational Meeting or at a Special Congregational Meeting which may be called for this purpose. The decision of the Congregational Meeting is final. Until the Congregational Meeting to consider the appeal, the position held by the disciplined member of the Board shall be considered vacant.

K. Limitation of Liability – No director or officer of the church shall be liable for any act or failure to act by any other director or officer of the Church or by any employee of the Church. No director or officer of the Church shall be liable for any loss arising from any fault in the title to any property acquired by the Church. No director or officer of the Church shall be liable for any loss arising from any fault in any security in which the Church might invest, or from bankruptcy, insolvency, or wrongful act by any person to who the Church might entrust any of its property. No director or officer of the Church shall be liable for any loss due to error of judgment or oversight on their part, or for any other loss whatsoever occurring in the carrying out of the duties of their office, unless this loss arises from the director's or officer's own willful neglect or fraudulent or criminal actions.

L. Indemnity – The church shall protect every director and officer of the church against all costs arising in relation to their relations with the Church, unless they are occasioned by their own willful neglect or fraudulent or criminal actions.

Article VII – Pastor

A. Role – The Pastor is the UFMCC clergy person with a license to practice who has been called by God and elected by the church to be responsible for the duties of teacher, preacher, and spiritual leader until such time that the relationship is terminated. The Pastor shall also fulfill

such other roles and responsibilities as are stated in the UFMCC Bylaws and the policies of the church.

1. Interim Pastoral Leader – In the event that a UFMCC clergy person is not available to serve as Pastor, the Board may request the Elder serving the Network to appoint an Interim Pastoral Leader, who shall be subject to a background check. The term of office of the Interim Pastoral Leader shall be up to one (1) year. The term of office may be extended by mutual consent of the Board and the Interim Pastor. If the Interim Pastoral Leader is a Member of MCC Knoxville, then the Interim Pastoral Leader shall have the authority to fulfill all of the roles and responsibilities of Pastor. If the Interim Pastoral Leader is not a Member of MCC Knoxville, then the Interim Pastoral Leader shall have the authority to fulfill all of the roles and responsibilities of Pastor. If the Interim Pastoral Leader shall serve as Vice-Moderator of the Board and Congregational Meetings (instead of Moderator), with voice but no vote.

B. Responsibilities – The Pastor shall have authority for ordering all worship services of the church; determining when other worship services will be held, subject to notice to the Board; appointing compensated and uncompensated church staff, subject to the approval of the Board; and determining compensation, vacation periods, and titles of office of the church staff, subject to approval of the Board. The Pastor shall serve as a voting member of the Board, Moderator of the Board and of Congregational Meetings, personnel director, and as the primary spokesperson of the church to the community. The Pastor may delegate such duties as seems wise.

C. Pastoral Covenant – The Board and Pastor shall develop a covenant between the Pastor and the church. The covenant shall include a job description and address such matters as compensation that is consistent with equitable local standards, benefits, allowances, and leave. All provisions of the covenant shall be subordinate to the Bylaws of the UFMCC.

1. Conference Expenses – To the best of its ability, the congregation shall fund the Pastor's transportation, registration, and per diem at General Conferences.

D. Pastoral Vacancy – In the event of a vacancy in the position of Pastor, a Pastoral Search Committee shall be responsible for presenting a qualified candidate for election at a Congregational Meeting. The Pastoral Search Committee shall develop and implement the pastoral search process, in consultation with an Elder.

1. Composition of Pastoral Search Committee – The Pastoral Search Committee shall consist of seven (7) members. The Committee will include three (3) members of the Board (selected by the Board) and four (4) additional members elected at a Congregational Meeting.

2. Election of Pastor – To be elected, the candidate presented by the Pastoral Search Committee must receive more than seventy percent (70%) of the votes cast.

E. Termination of Relationship – The Pastor and congregation may choose at any time to terminate their relationship through mutual agreement. Unilateral failure to renew the Pastor's contract shall not constitute removal of the Pastor from office. No petition for removal of the Pastor based on irreconcilable differences is valid unless preceded by the process of conflict resolution, as referred to in Article VIII.

Article VIII – Conflict Resolution

When there are conflicts or difficulty within the church that cannot be resolved, including conflicts between the Pastor and congregation, the Board, the Pastor, or a petition signed by a minimum of thirty-three percent (33%) of the Members in good standing may invite intervention by an Elder to resolve the conflict, in accordance with UFMCC Bylaws. Before involvement of the Elder, the MCCK's policy of Reconciliation should be used. This policy is attached to these By-Laws as Addendum A.

A. Removing the Pastor from Office – The church shall follow the process as outlined in the UFMCC Bylaws for removing the Pastor from office for disloyalty, unbecoming conduct, dereliction of duty, or when irreconcilable differences arise that cannot be resolved through mutual agreement.

1. Any petition to initiate the process of removing the Pastor from office must be submitted to the Clerk of the Board and be signed by at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the members in good standing.

2. The Board may initiate the process of removing the Pastor from office by a vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the full Board.

3. The Clerk shall send a copy of the completed petition or motion of the Board to the Elder serving the Network within three (3) days.

4. The Pastor shall remain fully compensated until the final action of the congregation.

Article IX – Lay Delegate

The church shall elect one (1) lay person for every one hundred (100) members in good standing, or part thereof, to serve as Lay Delegate. The Lay Delegate(s) shall be a Member in good standing of MCCK.

- A. Election The Lay Delegate(s) shall be elected at the regular Spring Congregational Meeting during the year prior to the regularly scheduled General Conference. A plurality of the votes cast shall be required to elect.
- B. Term of Office The term of office of Lay Delegate shall be three (3) years.
- C. Duties The duties of the Lay Delegate shall be to represent the congregation at General Conferences, to communicate with the congregation regarding UFMCC concerns, policies, and activities in the world, and seek to ensure that local Bylaws and policies are in line with Network and Fellowship actions.
- D. Funding To the best of its ability, the congregation shall fund the Lay Delegate's expenses for transportation, registration, and per diem at General Conferences.
- E. Vacancies In the event of a vacancy of a Lay Delegate position, the Board may appoint a qualified Member to fill the vacancy until the next Congregational Meeting, when an election shall be held to fill the unexpired term.
- F. Discipline The church cannot condone disloyalty, unbecoming conduct, or dereliction of duty on the part of any Lay Delegate. Therefore, the Board may remove by a majority vote of the full Board any Lay Delegate guilty of the above. A petition submitted to the Clerk and signed by twenty percent (20%) of the Members in good standing of the congregation may also initiate such a procedure.
 - Right of Appeal A disciplined Lay Delegate may appeal the action to the congregation at its next regular Congregational Meeting or at a Special Congregational Meeting which may be called for this purpose. The decision of the Congregational Meeting is final. Until the Congregational Meeting to consider the appeal, the position held by the disciplined Lay Delegate shall be considered vacant.

Article X – Church Finances

A. Authorized Signatures – Any church bank or other financial accounts shall require two signatures for withdrawals, all members of the Board shall be signatories on the accounts.

B. Limit on Expenditures –

1. The Pastor shall have the authority to commit church funds within the approved budget in any amount not to exceed five percent (5%) of the annual budget; any expenditure that is greater than that amount requires the approval of the Board.

2. The Board shall have the authority to commit church funds within the approved budget in any amount not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the annual budget; any expenditure greater than that amount requires congregational approval.

C. Fiscal Year – For the purpose of reporting to UFMCC, the fiscal year of the church shall be the calendar year.

D. Church Budget – The Board shall be responsible for presenting to the Fall Congregational Meeting for approval an annual operating budget that reflects anticipated receipts and disbursements. The approved budget may be amended, as needed, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board, which shall immediately notify the Members of the Church that such amendment has been made.

1. Budget Year – The annual budget of the church shall cover the period from January 1 through December 31.

E. Assessments – The Board shall report quarterly to the UFMCC the number of members in good standing for each month within the quarter and shall remit the Board of Pensions assessments as set by General Conference. The report and remittance are due to the Board of Pensions on or before the tenth (10th) day of the month following the quarter reported.

F. Tithes – The Board shall report all church receipts each month to the UFMCC, and with that report shall remit a percentage of the funds reported. The percentage of funds to be remitted shall be determined by General Conference.

Article XI – Adoption and Amendments

A. Adoption – These Bylaws shall become effective immediately upon adoption by the Congregational Meeting and approval by an Elder.

B. Amendments – These Bylaws may be amended or repealed at any duly convened Congregational Meeting. Proposed amendments or repeals shall be submitted in writing to the Board no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Congregational Meeting the proposal is to be considered. Adoption of the amendment or the repeal shall require approval by a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote and is subject to approval by an Elder. Amendments that are necessitated by amendments made to the UFMCC Bylaws shall not require approval by the congregation.

By-Laws for Metropolitan Community Church of Knoxville, Inc. Reflecting Changes Made May 21, 2023

Addendum A - Conflict Resolution and Reconciliation Policy for Metropolitan Community Church of Knoxville (Based on Matthew 18)

Matthew 18 according to "The Message" Copyright 1993, 1994, 1995, 1996, 2000, 2001, 2002 by Eugene H. Peterson

Whoever Becomes Simple Again

1 At about the same time, the disciples came to Jesus asking, "Who gets the highest rank in God's kingdom?"

2-5 For an answer Jesus called over a child, whom he stood in the middle of the room, and said, "I'm telling you, once and for all, that unless you return to square one and start over like children, you're not going to get a look at the kingdom, let alone get in. Whoever becomes simple and elemental again, like this child, will rank high in God's kingdom. What's more, when you received the childlike on my account, it's the same as receiving me. 6-7 "But if you give them a hard time, bullying or taking advantage of their simple trust, you'll soon wish you hadn't. You'd be better off dropped in the middle of the lake with a millstone around your neck. Doom to the world for giving these God-believing children a hard time! Hard times are inevitable, but you don't have to make it worse – and it's doomsday to you if you do.

8-9 "If your hand or your foot gets in the way of God, chop it off and throw it away. You're better off maimed or lame and alive than the proud owners of two hands and two feet, godless in a furnace of eternal fire. And if your eye distracts you from God, pull it out and throw it away. You're better off one-eyed and alive than exercising your twenty-twenty vision from inside the fire of hell.

10 "Watch that you don't treat a single one of these childlike believers arrogantly. You realize, don't you, that their personal angels are constantly in touch with my Father in heaven?

Work It Out Between You

12-14 "Look at it this way. If someone has a hundred sheep and one of them wanders off, doesn't he leave the ninety-nine and go after the one? And if he finds it, doesn't he make far more over it than over the ninety-nine who stay put? Your Father in heaven feels the same way. He doesn't want to lose even one of these simple believers.

15-17 "If a fellow believer hurts you, go and tell him – work it out between the two of you. If he listens, you've made a friend. If he won't listen, take one or two others along so that the presence of witnesses will keep things honest, and try again. If he still won't listen, tell the church. If he won't listen to the church, you'll have to start over from scratch, confront him with the need for repentance, and offer again God's forgiving love.

18-20 "Take this most seriously: A yes on earth is yes in heaven; a no on earth is no in heaven. What you say to one another is eternal. I mean this. When two of you get together on anything at all on earth and make a prayer of it, my Father in heaven goes into action. And when two or three of you are together because of me, you can be sure that I'll be there."

A Story About Forgiveness

21 At that point Peter got up the nerve to ask, "Master, how many times do I forgive a brother or sister who hurts me? Seven?"

22 Jesus replied, "Seven! Hardly. Try seventy times seven.

23-25 "The kingdom of God is like a king who decided to square accounts with his servants. As he got under way, one servant was brought before him who had run up a debt of a hundred thousand dollars. He couldn't pay up, so the king ordered the man, along with his wife, children, and goods, to be auctioned off at the slave market.

26-27 "The poor wretch threw himself at the king's feet and begged, 'Give me a chance and I'll pay it all back.' Touched by his plea, the king let him off, erasing the debt.

28 "The servant was no sooner out of the room when he came upon one of his fellow servants who owed him ten dollars. He seized him by the throat and demanded, 'Pay up. Now!'

29-31 "The poor wretch threw himself down and begged, 'Give me a chance and I'll pay it all back.' But he wouldn't do it. He had him arrested and put in jail until the debt was paid. When the other servants saw this going on, they were outraged and brought a detailed report to the king.

32-25 "The king summoned the man and said, 'You evil servant! I forgave your debt when you begged me for mercy. Shouldn't you be compelled to be merciful to your fellow servant who asked for mercy?' The king was furious and put the screws to the man until he paid back his

entire debt. And that's exactly what my Father in heaven is going to do to each of you who doesn't forgive unconditionally anyone who asks for mercy."

PREAMBLE

At MCC Knoxville, the quality and strength of our interpersonal relationships are vitally important to our ministry being effective. As in all human relationships, however, conflict will occur from time to time. Conflict itself is not negative. It is natural. Conflict can be either beneficial or harmful, depending on how it is addressed and handled.

Conflict can be beneficial when it is used to make necessary changes, to produce gains, and to foster unity and understanding.

Conflict can be harmful when it is not dealt with directly, fairly and prayerfully; or when it escalates to threats, name-calling, expansion from one issue to multiple issues, and movement away from specific complaints to general complaints.

The Pastor, Assistant Pastor, Administrative Council, Deacons and all church staff and members are to be committed to handling conflict in a mature, loving, and constructive manner and should mutually agree that the good of the congregation is paramount.

POLICY

MCC Knoxville believes that conflict can best be resolved by the parties involved meeting promptly to identify and discuss the conflict with each other, without outside intervention or assistance. MCCK also believes, however, that unresolved conflict between individuals becomes conflict within the church as a whole, causing disruption and divisiveness, and thereby interfering with the Church's ability to fulfill its mission effectively. Therefore the following process will be followed by the Church:

- It is understood that the parties involved in conflict within the Church are responsible for meeting with one another first to discuss the conflict. This discussion should be respectful and should be a move toward understanding....not necessarily agreement. The parties involved should meet together without outside interference or assistance. The conflict should not be a topic of discussion for any parties other than those involved.
- If the parties involved are not able to reach resolution, after meeting independently without outside interference or assistance, they may contact either a member of the Pastoral Staff and/or a member of the Administrative Council. After being informed of

the conflict from one or more of the parties involve, or when a member of the Pastoral staff or Administrative Council deems it necessary, the member of the Pastoral staff or Administrative Council member will:

- a. Contact the parties involved to encourage them to meet again with each other in a reasonable amount of time and diligently pursue resolution without outside intervention. Contact must be by telephone or face-to-face. Email communication is not acceptable. (Note: A "reasonable amount of time" shall be defined as approximately thirty days or less, barring any unforeseen circumstances which would make this timeframe impossible.)
- b. Notify one other member of the Pastoral Staff or Administrative Council member.
- 3. If the conflict has not been resolved by the parties involved after their second meeting in a reasonable amount of time, the member of the Pastoral Staff and the Administrative Council member(s) aware of the conflict will schedule a meeting with all parties involved. (Note: A "reasonable amount of time" shall be defined as approximately thirty days or less, barring any unforeseen circumstances which would make this timeframe impossible.)
- 4. If after the member of the Pastoral Staff and the Administrative Council member(s) involved meet with the parties and there is still no resolution, the parties will be asked to meet with an agreeable mediator. This mediator may be a Church member, an outside consultant, or a person appointed by the Regional Elder.
- 5. In support of each of the parties to the conflict, the Pastoral Staff, Administrative Council and each of the parties involved must adhere to the following guiding principles:
 - a. Affirm their relationship with God and commit to finding acceptable solutions that exemplify God's grace and God's will.
 - b. Demonstrate concern for the mutual benefit and support of all parties, as well as MCCK as a whole.
 - c. Be firm in each party's interest while also being flexible on possible solutions to the conflict.
 - d. At all times, speak to each person's self-esteem and worth as a human being.
 - e. Identify and eliminate false conflicts. Misunderstandings are not true conflicts. Analyze the interests of all parties involved. Talk about the problem first, then the solutions.
 - f. Strive to reveal the interests of all parties involved. Remember that an individual's interests are the focal point of the conflict.

RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES

Each of the parties to the conflict will:

- 1. Be given equal time to present the problem and interests. Each must use the word "I", not "You". (i.e. "This is how I feel....." not "Here is how you make me feel.")
- 2. Be given a reasonable amount of time to make complete statements to illustrate their thoughts without interruption.
- 3. Be acknowledged that they are being heard through the use of solid and sincere eye contact. Parties should not interrupt each other when speaking.
- 4. Ask clarifying questions. Trying to find solutions to which all parties can agree. Ask a lot of questions, brainstorm possible answers first, pick from the best solutions afterwards.
- 5. Stick to the topic at hand. Do not "fog" or "cloud the issue" with unrelated issues or complaints.
- 6. Look for areas of agreement.
- 7. Refrain from escalating the discussion. If the discussion becomes escalated, the discussion will be temporarily stopped until calm can be restored.
- 8. Utilize mutual restating. If anyone says, "You don't understand", the discussion will be stopped and the person making the statement will be asked to rephrase the statement in a more positive way.
- 9. State all requests for change in behavioral terms. It will not be allowable to ask for an attitude change.
- 10. Be aware of body language. Be consistent with verbal and non-verbal message. A person's body language will be believed and remembered over their words.
- 11. Sit either on the same side of the table or in chairs at a 45 degree angle. Nothing should physically separate the parties involved.
- 12. Agree that everything that is said and all actions that are taken within the Council will remain strictly confidential.
- 13. Agree the only solutions that will work are the solutions that all parties come up with together and accept individually.

SUMMARY

Jesus tells us that in a conflict we are first to go to the brother/sister that hurt us. If we cannot reconcile, we should take the conflict to a member of the Pastoral Staff or the Administrative Council. All of this is to be done with great humility and concern for self, for the other, and for the Church. It is through our love for one another that the world comes to know the love of God.